TOWN OF WALLINGFORD, CONNECTICUT
SPECIAL TOWN COUNCIL MEETING
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE
Thursday, April 22, 2021
Immediately at the Conclusion of the Budget Workshop Scheduled for 6:30 P.M.

THE SPECIAL TOWN COUNCIL MEETING WILL BE HELD REMOTELY
ONLY ON APRIL. 22, 2021 AND WILL BE ACCESSED THROUGH:

https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/723126381
YOU CAN ALSO PIAL IN USING YOUR PHONE:

United States (Toll Free): 1-877-309-2073
United States +1{646) 749-3129
Access Code: 723-126-381

Live stream of the meeting will also be available on the Town of Wallingford You Tube Channel:
https://www.youtube.com/c/wallingfordgovernmenttelevision

AGENDA
[. Call to Order
2. Pledge of Allegiance
3. Roll Call
4. Approval of Minutes of March 2, 2021 Ordinance Committee Meeting.

5. Discussion and Possible Action on Littering and Dumping, Ordinance §139 — Councilor
Zandri

6. Adjournment.

Please wait for Chairman Shortell to instruct the attendees as to how the meeting will be conducted.

In accordance with Title Il of the Americans with Disabilities Act- Individuals In need of auxiliary aids
for effective communication in programs and services of the Town of Wallingford are invited to make their
needs and preferences known to the ADA Compliance Coordinator at 203-284-2070 five days prior to meeting date.

Wallingford Town Hall, 45 South Main Street




TOWN OF WALLINGFORD, CONNECTICUT
SPECIAL TOWN COUNCIL MEETING
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE

Tuesday, March 2, 2021
6:30 P.ML

HELD REMOTELY VIA GOTOMEETINGS
RECORD OF VOTES AND MINUTES

The meeting was called to order at 6:30 P.M. The Pledge of Allegiance was said. The following
Councilors were in attendance: Vincent Cervoni, Craig Fishbein, Thomas Laffin, Joseph Marrone, Gina
Morgenstein, Christina Tatta, Jason Zandri, and Chairman Christopher Shortell. Also in attendance was:
Corporation Counsel Janis Small.

Chairman Shortell explained what the Ordinance Committee does and how the meeting will work.

1. Call to Order

2, Pledge of Alfegiance

3. Roll Call

4. Approval of Minutes of February 2, 2021, Ordinance Committee meeting,

MOTION WAS MADE TO APPROVE THE FEBRUARY 2, 2021 MINUTES AS
PRESENTED.,

MADE BY: SHORTELL
SECONDED BY: CERVONI
ABSTAIN: FISHBEIN
VOTE: UNANIMOUS
MOTION: PASSED

5. Discussion and possible action concerning Town Fees for Use in Parks, Ordinance §151-9.

Councilor Marrone explained that the ability to tax or levy fees is held solely by the Council per the
Charter. The Council often delegates this authority via ordinance. The park permits/rules/regulations are
under the control of the Recreation Commission. The ability to set fees for park use was granted fo the
Recreation Commission by the Town Council in 2003. He explained that some fees are set by ordinance,
some by Council, and only a few have no Council review. He stated that if the fee is a tax, they have
given taxing authority to volunteers. He shared the existing ordinance and proposed a motion to add the

Ordinance Committee, March 2, 2021




following to it: “Facility permit fee structures require the approval of the Town Council. Fee structure
changes will take effect a minimum of six months after approval by the Council.” He proposed a
discussion on whether Council should have given up the authority to a volunteer group if the 6 months is
reasonable, if there should be a formal process to request fees, what the parameters would be and if all
groups using the parks are created equal.

MOTION WAS MADE TO APPROVE THE PROPOSED ADDITION TO ORDINANCE §151-9
AS FOLLOWS FACILITY PERMIT FEE STRUCTURES REQUIRE THE APPROVAL OF THE
TOWN COUNCIL. FEE STRUCTURE CHANGES WILL TAKE EFFECT A MINIMUM OF SIX
MONTHS AFTER APPROVAL BY THE COUNCIL.

MADE BY: MARRONE
SECONDED BY: SHORTELL

DISCUSSION:

Councilor Fishbein asked for the reason for the six months. He suggested an annual review of the fees
instead. Councilor Marrone explained that fead time would be needed to determine changes., He noted
that if someone renting a park had special arrangements other than the standard fee it would come to the
Council. Councilor Fishbein asked if the Council takes back power to set fees, would the Council be
responsible for dealing with waivers. Councilor Marrone replied that the current ordinance says the
Department has the power to negotiate fees but they would be approved by the Council.

Chairman Cervoni noted that ordinances usually have 30 days before they take effect. He disagreed with
the six months. He suggested allowing people who booked in advance, to keep that fee as of the time it
was booked. It can state that this will apply to reservations made going forward.

Atty. Small suggested that instead of six months, state that when the Council approves the fees they will
set the effective date.

Kenny Michaels, Director of Parks and Recreation, stated that six months is a long timeframe to wait for
approval to adjust fees. He noted that the last facility fee adjustment was in 2015, though they are
reviewed annually. This year they fooked at who is using the facilities. He noted that this is the first time
in 18 years he has seen the Council involved in the decision on park fees.

Councilor Marrone stated that the question came up due to issues mentioned in the newspaper with the
YMCA and Doolittle Park. He stated that there is no offense intended to the Recreation Commission.

Councilor Morgenstein stated that she is not an expert in the functioning of the parks and asked if the
Council can determine the fees.

Jason Michael, Parks and Recreation Commissioner, stated that the Commission has the expertise. They
oversee the Department, the parks, the usage, and the needs and are in the best situation to set rates. He
stated that he agreed to the Council reviewing any changes in the fees.

Ordinance Committee, March 2, 2021 Page 2




Councilor Iishbein stated that 30 days is sufficient and he agreed to add a grandfather provision. He
suggested possibly increasing fees incrementally to match changes to the mill rate. For waivers, he stated
that there have to be set criteria. He is okay with bringing power back to the Council.

Chairman Cervoni stated that he doesn’t see this as a tax but a user fee. He agreed with some metrics to
periodically adjust the rates. He disagreed with using the mill rate. He stated that he is not sure that the
proposal is the right solution to the current problem. The problem is not a change in the amount of the
fee, but a policy decision on who should pay the fees, The Commission is advisory to the Park &
Recreation Department. The relationship has worked well historically.

Councilor Shortell stated that he disagreed that expertise is an issue. He agreed that there are two
separate issues. One is the philosophical discussion of should the Council take back some kind of veto
power, which will not affect the current issue.

Councilor Tatta explained that she received calls and messages from YMCA camp participant parents,
She stated that the proposal was an attempt to step in. She noted that she is not interested in setting fees
for the parks but this is something the Council can do. She asked if Parks & Recreation is not receiving
enough money and why they eliminated the waiver.

Mr. Michaels replied that there was never an official waiver for organizations such as the YMCA or the
Boys & Girls Club. The document with the fees states that they may be waived and lists categories and
organizations, [t does not say that it will be waived. He noted that their budget was cut last year so they
are trying to do more with user fees and rely less on tax dollars. He stated that the fees go back into the
park facilities and programs. They are always trying to make the park system better.

Councilor Marrone stated his concern is that someone else has the authority over something that should
be under Council control. He asked where the fees are used. Mr. Michaels replied that the registration
and facilities fees go into the Program Revenue fund. The fees are for the rental of pavilions, baseball
fields, etc. The money is disbursed back into the parks for maintenance and repairs. He gave some recent
examples. Councilor Marrone stated that his concern was more with how the rates are set than how they

are spent.

Councilor Fishbein noted that the draft proposal means that the Council is responsible for the current fee
structure. He suggested removing the second senfence and to run it as a friendly amendment. He proposed
changing it to: ‘Fee structure changes will take effect 30 days after action by the Council unless the
Council determines otherwise.” Councilor Marrone agreed and accepted that amendment to the Motion,
Councilor Shortell amended his second.

Mayor Dickinson explained that fees should be connected to the cost borne by the department or town as
a result of use, i.e. more grass cutting, more wear and tear on facilities. He fears that fees could become
burdensome or discriminatory without relation to the use of the property. User fees need a connection to
the impact on the organization using the park as well. If there is no analysis, what is the basis for fees and
how are we ensuring they are not arbitrary or discriminatory?

Ordinance Committee, March 2, 2021 Page 3




Councilor Tatta asked for verification that this only refers to park and facility fees, not all of the Parks and
Recreation catalog. Chairman Shortell noted that it should include things like pool tags, but the
assumption is that Council would get a list of fees for park facilitics. Atty. Small agreed that this
Ordinance is specifically for the park facilities. Councilor Tatta asked if we want fo add ‘fees and/or
waivers’ to the proposed language to address the current issue. This means the Council also approves
waivers,

Chairman Shortell asked how many waivers are given each year. Mr. Michaels replied that there was
never a formal waiver process and there are no applications. Based on the wording in their fees document,
they usually don’t charge volunteer-based programs. He stated that the language in the package says that
there could have been a charge. Chairman Shortell asked if waivers are an administrative decision. Mr.
Michaels replied yes. Chairman Shortell noted that the proposed language doesn’t change that. Atty.
Small stated that a legislative authority would need to set criteria or require them to come back to the
council with a written procedure. If no there is no criterion for waivers it is open to uneven treatiment. The
fee structure could include the process for something being waived. She noted that it is not unusual to
have an ordinance such as this delegating the authorily or stating that the Council must approve. Atty.
Small suggested discussing whether the power stays with the Department and Commission or comes back
to Council. She recommended some parameters on waivers,

Councilor Tatta asked that “fees and/or waivers’ be added to the Motion. Councilor Marrone stated that
the word waiver would be redundant. Atty. Small stated that Council can include clarifying language on
a waiver process. Councilor Marrone agreed to add ‘and waivers’ to the Motion, Atty. Small
recommended changing the first line to read ‘facility permit fee structures including waiver provisions
require the approval of the Council.’

Mr. Michaels asked if waiver requests will have to go to Council. Atty. Small responded that the criteria
would be set by Council. The Department would approve the waivers. Councilor Marrone agreed to that
change to the motion. Chairman Shortell agreed to amend the second.

Kim DePiero, 314 Main Street, Wallingford, asked via the chat, how the fees are determined and if they
are shared with the public before being levied. Chairman Shortell replied that fees are discussed at public
meetings with agendas that are posted ahead of time. Mr. Michaels stated that the facility fee structure
has been in place since 2015. The Department looks at what is charged in surrounding towns and what
they need to support the facilities. He noted that Public Works doesn’t track the costs of park
maintenance.

Jason Michael stated that the last fee change happened when they locked at the pool on a long-term basis
and realized how underpriced the pool tag was. There wasn’t enough money coming in to support the
pool. He stated that they also started looking at all their fees. He noted that the current issue is about
increasing the Doolittle Park rental fee from $750 a day to $800 a day. This came from comparisons with
other towns and looking at relationships with non-profits. He noted that the parks are tired and the
buildings need work. If fees are tweaked the money will be there to maintain the parks.

Ordinance Committee, March 2, 2021 Page 4




Councilor Laffin asked about the process for approving a waiver. If the Council will be doing it will there
need to be enough time to get it on the agenda. Do we have to wait until a change occurs before reviewing
them? Chairman Shortell stated that there would have to be criteria for the waiver and the Council would
influence that criterion. Atty. Small stated that if Council passes the ordinance, Council would approve
the fees and waiver structure. She stated that the walver structure can be part of the ordinance or the
Department and Commission can propose a fee structure and waiver provisions. They say how the waiver
is determined and processed and the Council will sign off. The waiver applications wouldn’t come to
Council. The process would be approved by Council,

Councilor Laffin asked about changes made before the law approved because they can’t go backward. He
stated that he doesn’t want to take responsibility from Commission. Atty. Small staled that at the time the
Ordinance becomes effective, the Department and Commission would submit their proposal for approval,
She added that up until the time ordinance passes, the authority to set fees is with the Commission.
Councilor Laffin asked if the Council would get a list of fees and waivers. Afty. Small stated that Council
would review the fee structure. The only thing currently missing is the structure of how waivers are
determined. Councilor Laffin asked if the Ordinance will compel them to give a complete report to
Council or only if there are changes. Afty. Small replied that when it’s effective, they have to submit the
fee structure to Council for approval,

Chairman Shortell noted that Council has been involved in the approval of the use of the Parade Grounds
and the Parisi Chambers, Council also changed the pool tag price in 2019 when we kept the pool open
longer.

Councilor Fishbein stated that without criteria, the waiver process can be discriminatory. This needs to be
resolved. He stated that Council is not in a position to determine fees. We have to give trust to those we
have appointed based on the criteria we set. He suggested setting up a system of criteria for waivers that
provides a paper trail to avoid complaints of discrimination. Chairman Shortell stated that the Department
and Commission would still determine the fees. They need to develop the criteria for waivers and Council
can review them. Councilor Fishbein stated concerns with Council approving the fees without the
expertise,

Councilor Tatta asked how the fees are used to offset the costs when all the revenue goes to the Town,
Mr. Michaels replied that fees are assigned to the Parks and Recreation revenue account. He stated that
they do get the exact amount back but it doesn’t roll over at the end of the budget year. Councilor Tatta
aslked what happens if Council doesn’t agree with the fee structure presented. Atty. Small replied that
ultimately the Counecil makes the decision. In the normal course of events, the Commission would make
changes based on the direction of the Council. It is not likely the Council would have to step in and set
the fees.

Jason Michael stated that he understands that the Council would approve the fees set by the Commission.
He noted that there is misinformation that is upsetting people in town. He explained that the $800 fee was
not considered to be applied to any group. He noted that if you pay the full park fee, you are entitled to
the entire park. In the current situation, the entirety of Doolittle Park is rented for the summer, for 45
days. He stated that a 25% fee was proposed for Doolittle Park which works out to fess than $1 per

Page 5

Ordinance Committee, March 2, 2021




camper per day, using their numbers. The Commission is trying to make it so everyone can use the park
whether part of the camp or not. The Commission is not taking the park away from the kids. He agreed
that it is important to look at who is getting waivers. They are looking at how to define or categorize non-
profits for waivers, Mr. Michael asked if Council will also fook at the Board of Education facility fees,
Atty. Small stated that they have no authority over the Board of Ed.

Councilor Morgenstein stated that we are looking at deferred maintenance in the parks and other parts of
town that will have to be considered during the budget process. She noted they are spending time based
on Facebook rumors that were not based on fact.

Councilor Marrone stated that this addresses the creation of waiver criteria as well as allowing the
Council to review the fees and waiver policy. The reason we have a Council is to make these decisions.
A political issue developed and this is why it should go before a legislative body.

Chairman Shortell called for public comment. Hearing none he called for a vote,

The Amended Motion was reviewed.
MOTION TO APPROVE THE PROPOSED ADDITION TO ORDINANCE §151-9 AS
FOLLOWS FACILITY PERMIT FEE STRUCTURES, INCLUDING WAIVER
PROVISIONS, REQUIRE THE APPROVAL OF THE TOWN COUNCIL. FEE STRUCTURE
CHANGES WILL TAKE EFFECT 30 DAYS AFTER ACTION BY THE COUNCIL UNLESS
THE COUNCIL DETERMINES OTHERWISE.

ROLL CALL VOTEL: MORGENSTEIN: YES
CERVONI: NO SHORTELL: YES
FISHBEIN: YIS TESTA: ABSENT
LAFFIN: YES TATTA: YES
MARRONE: YES ZANDRI: YES

7~ AYE

1-NAY

1- ABSENT

0- ABSTAIN

MOTION: PASSED
6. Discussion and possible action concerning Metal Detectors in Parks.

Kenny Michaels, Director of Parks and Recreation explained that there is an issue with people using
metal detectors in open fields, open spaces, and conservation areas causing a problem for public works.
For example, people are finding the metal pins that Public Works uses to mark fields, dig them up and
discard them. This causes extra work to replace the pins, There are also erosion problems and digging-up
plants in Tyler Mill. He requested an ordinance against metal detecting and digging on town property.

Ordinance Committee, March 2, 2021 Page 6




Chairman Shortell asked where an ordinance can be incorporated. Atty. Small suggested looking at a list
of other items that could be included in a section of things you are prohibited from doing and can be
fined. If they just want to ban metal detectors, she suggested a separate section and a fine of up to $250.

Councilor Fishbein stated that he understood the concern, but doesn’t see the remedy as banning metal
detecting in the parks. He suggested education or licensure instead, The parks belong to the townspeople.
He also suggested rethinking the field markers.

Councilor Tatta asked if a section could be added to Section 151-5 under Parks and Park Facilities where
it says alcohol and tobacco are prohibited. Atty, Small agreed.

Councilor Marrone stated that the metal detecting isn’t the problem as much as the digging. He stated that
he doesn’t agree that the digging counts as public use because it destroys the use for others. He agrees
with banning metal detecting in public space,

Councilor Laffin agreed. He focused on the intended use of the athletic fields. The rules are to protect the
use of the fields. He has no problem with prohibiting metal detecting in designated areas.

Councilor Morgenstein agreed. She stated that no one should be digging in the parks. There has to be
wording about digging affecting the nature of the park or physical disruption of the park.

Mary Heffernon, Conservation Commission, agreed that there should be no digging on public open space.
She agreed that it belongs to the public but it is not their property to do with as they choose. They are not
supposed 10 be taking objects out of public space. She is not in favor of metal detectors.

Councitor Fishbein asked about the extent of the problem and how big the holes are. He agreed with the
concern about digging in soccer fields and erosion based on digging at Tyler Mill,

Chairman Shortell stated that the fields are intended for athletic use. The system the town uses to draw the
lines to change from one sport to another uses metal pins.

Councilor Fishbein suggested posting a sign notifying people of the pins. He asked if he could take a
rock home from Tyler Mill. Mary Heffernon replied that he is barred from taking a rock from Tyler Mill
because it is a natural feature. She stated that the holes in Tyler Mill are big. She noted that no one would
read a sign.

Chairman Cervoni stated that the problem is the destruction of Town property as well as the holes causing
danger. He doesn’t disagree that it’s all of our property the way it is, not to take pieces of it. He is in
favor of legislation to preserve the parks.

Andrew Vacco, 4 Franks Court, Wallingford, spoke on behalf of the Nutmeg Treasure Hunter Club. This
is a hobby. He explained that he typically digs with a tfrowel that is 2 inches by 6 inches and replaces the
sod and dirt leaving no indication that the property has been disturbed. He stated that metal detectorists
don’t dig holes and don’t use shovels. He also noted that they often remove hazardous metal and sharp

Ordinance Committee, March 2, 2021




objects from the property. They have a code of ethics (FDMAC) that includes restoring the property. He
agrees that signage would protect the field pins, He stated that they often do surface hunting in fields that
involve no digging. He stated that they are often involved in [aw enforcement recoveries.

Wayne Aguiar, 20 Hanson Road, Wallingford, stated that he is a member of several clubs. Ie agrees that
education is needed. The clubs have a policy of leaving no trace; they only go 2-3 inches down. He is
happy to do demonstrations. He stated that if they find identifiable things they try to return them. He
stated that they often remove metal trash from parks and beaches as part of their honor code. The
Federation of Metal Detectors has a code of ethics. He discouraged penalizing a group of people who
have perfected the technique. They don’t do it to become rich, they like finding and preserving history.
He supports giving fines to people that don’t follow the correct procedures He has no problem with Tyler
Mill being prohibited,

Michael Luksic commented in the chat that he is an avid detectorist and respects the environment and
park settings. He stated that they don’t go where they are not allowed. He also stated that you wouldn’t
know they had been there.

Daniel Hott, 75 Todd Drive South, North Haven, a member of the Nutmeg Treasure Hunters Club, noted
that there are no holes left by responsible metal detectorists. He stated that they don’t remove plants or
stones and fill in any holes. He stated that education is needed. He asked the Council to consider not
generalizing hobbyists that use parks responsibly.

Councifor Marrone stated that he appreciated the comments. He asked for suggestions for the problem
with pins in fields being removed. Mr. Michaels noted that they use 3-inch bolts with washers and Public
Works uses metal detectors to find them to line the fields. Different numbers of washers represent
different sports so the fields can be lined for different sports.

Councilor Fishbein suggested using plastic markers at the surface of the ground for the field markers to
indicate that the pin is there for a reason. |

Mr. Aguiar stated that he had not heard of detectorists digging up field pins. He will spread the word to
not detect in athletic fields and suggested thinking outside the box for a plastic alternative or a different
way to mark the pins. He also encouraged education.

Chairman Shortell asked Mr. Michaels to come back next month with a proposal. Mr. Michaels agreed.

7. Discussion on panhandling

Councilor Tatta told of a recent complaint from a resident and stated that she understood that panhandling
is covered under free speech based on a Supreme Court decision. But if it becomes more prevalent it can
hurt businesses. Her research says that it usually happens on private property in large shopping centers.
The police can’t do anything untit they get a complaint from business owners.

Ordinance Committee, March 2, 2021 Page 8




Chairman Shortell asked Council to look at the issue holistically, including what to do to help these
people,

Chief Wright stated that panhandling is protected under the First Amendment. They are aware of all the
activity on the Rt. 5 corridor. They have received complaints from property owners. They do enforce
posted loitering. He stated that the State DOT has recognized the use of the Rt. 5 corridor by pedestrian
panhandling as lawful use of the highway as long as it’s not reckless. He stated that determining State
property on Rt. 5 vs. private property isn’t always easy. He added that once people are spoken to they
usually move along. The police offer services from the town Social Services and other resources but are
always denied, He explained that they can’t do anything unless the people are using Rt. 5 in a reckless
manner or trespassing on private property. He noted that these people know where they can be and when.

Mandy Miranda, Director of Youth and Social Services stated that they work with the Police Department
and are in conversation about having a social service caseworker go out with the Police. She stated that
they are available to help. She added that the people the police talk fo don’t seem to want help.

Atty. Small stated that it is protected speech so it is hard to create an ordinance. Strict scrutiny is applied
based on the Reed vs, Town of Gilbert case. She cited some examples of ordinances that were struck
down in the court system. The courts say panhandling ordinances are unconstitutional. The police can do
something on private property with posted no loitering or if a person is aggressive.

Councilor Fishbein stated that he is sympathetic to the individuals that have to panhandle. He quoted the
simple trespass statute 53110A and asked if it has been employed. Chief Wright explained that they have
used trespass infractions. If they knock on someone’s car window or create an annoyance, police can take
action. Councilor Fishbein stated that this is troubling because some of these people do need help.

Councilor Zandri stated that you can often tell who needs help and who doesn’t. Those who will accept a
sandwich are the ones who need help. He stated that we are part of the problem. If we stop giving them
money, they will go away. Those who generally need help know where to go to get it. These people
know their rights. They cause risk when they block traffic or get aggressive. He agreed that it is
escalating. He has sympathy for those who need help. He stated that if people want to help, they can
donate food to Master’s Manna or donate to other programs, He asked what else we can do.

Chief Wright replied that reckless use of a highway is an infraction and depending on the activity may be
a breach of peace. The issue has to be handled on a case-by-case basis but unless they are called, the
Police can’t be proactive. Councilor Zandri stated that since the police department is willing to engage
with them, maybe give them a fine and make it not so lucrative. He appealed to the public if you want to
help, support the organizations that help.

Councilor Fishbein suggested creating a licensure system with a waiver process and code of some sort.
Atty. Small stated that the constitutionality of that is questionable, but she offered to look into it.
Councilor Fishbein stated there would need to be a waiver for non-profits. Atty. Small asked if non-
profits have a better right to do something, Councilor Marrone stated that licensing would separate those
who really need the help as they wouldn’t apply. Chairman Cervoni asked who would administer the

Ordinance Committee, March 2, 2021 Page 9




license and logistics and agreed it would be a hurdle for the neediest people. Councilor Fishbein
suggested that police officers could give people the application and the waiver.

Chairman Shortefl asked Chief Wright if panhandling is in the top five problems they deal with, Chief
Wright replied possibly, as it is becoming an issue. In the grand scheme of things, it’s not big, but it
malces people uncomfortable.

Chairman Shortell asked Council if they support researching licensing,

Councilor Zandri asked if wealthy communities have similar problems. Chief Wright replied that it’s
probably just as prevalent. They might have an ordinance on blocking the sidewalk because you can’t
impede the flow of traffic. It’s a case-by-case decision. He noted that if an officer decides there’s a

trespass in an unsafe situation, the officer can remove the people. They usually depend on negotiation.

Chairman Shortell stated that he didn’t see support for researching licensing and thanked the group for the
good discussion. He stated he struggles with this personally and asked if someone other than the police
offered help would it do any good.

Councilor Tatta thanked Chief Wright, Ms. Miranda, and Atty. Small. She thanked eVeryone for what
they are doing. She noted that based on our discussion, we are doing everything we can at this point.

8. Discussion and possible action on Littering on town property, Ordinance §139

Atty. Small shared a draft of the ordinance and asked for input. She asked if she went too far by adding
dumping and for input on the fines for section 139-3. She noted that she added depositing household or
commercial litter into a public receptacle. As an example, she stated that if we issued infractions, littering
would be $219. Littering on public land would be $319. If we issued an infraction for unauthorized
disposal of waste in a refuse container more than a cubic foot it would be $75. Based on the statutes,
Council has the authority to go up to $1000. In terms of depositing household or commercial litter into
public receptacles, she asked if the Council wants the basic littering offense to be less than 1 cubic foot.
One cubic foot is half of'a 13-gallon kitchen garbage bag. She asked for assistance in filling in the
numbers for 139-3 which is the basic littering offense.

Councilor Zandri thanked Atty. Small for her work. He stated he was okay with littering and dumping
being together or in separate ordinances. He agreed with adding dumping because it becomes a road
hazard. Regarding the fines, he is okay with heavier fines as long are there are signs. He wants to see this
resolved. Atty. Small stated that dumping is an entirely different level. There is a Statute that if you get
caught you can forfeit the vehicle you used. Councilor Zandrt said Council would need to socialize and
advertise the impact and financial risk. Atty. Small noted that dumping can cross over into blighted
properties so it is beyond littering. Councilor Zandri stated that he supported doing both.

Councilor Fishbein asked for clarification of the fines in new 139-4 A and B. Atty. Small asked if
Council wants to consider something less than 1 cubic foot or trigger the fines at 1 cubic foot. Do we
want to make a distinction? Councilor Fishbein clarified that under letter A they get fined for littering,

Ordinance Committee, March 2, 2021 Page 10




under letter B they get fined for littering at what we’ve deemed to be an excessive amount. He proposed
$100 for the first offense, $200 for the second, and if it gets to 1 cubic foot, $300 for any offense.
Regarding 139-3, the new letter C, he suggested changing it to ‘shall undertake reasonable efforts’. Atty.
Small stated that she was attempting to update the existing language which was too complicated, She
agreed to look at it again. Chairman Shortell asked the Council if they supported this effort by Atty.
Small. No objections were stated.

Councilor Fishbein thanked Atty. Small for all her work and noted that in D and E the term ‘immediately’
is too subjective. Atty. Small replied that it is in the existing ordinance but she will take a look at the
wording. Chairman Shortell confirmed that Council has no objections to these efforts. No objections
were stated.

Councilor Fishbein noted in H the term ‘prima facia’. He suggested ‘a rebuttable presumption’ instead.
Atty. Smali replied that this is standard language and maybe a statutory reference. She agreed to look at
that and report back.

Councilor Fishbein asked why 139-4 is crossed out and who will enforce this. Atty. Small replied that the
Police Chief says the Police Department will enforce and that the language on enforcement is in 139-6.
She agreed it should be moved up and she will look at it again.

Councilor Fishbein asked where the appeal process is. Atty. Smali stated that 139-6C references the
citation appeal procedure instead of repeating it. It is laid out in the Dumping section as drafted, but it’s
under Conducting an Investigation. Councilor Fishbein stated that he didn’t see anything in present 139-6
that was objectionable. Atty. Small stated that she will take another look. She agreed, there should be
some elaboration of the process. Councilor Fishbein stated that if 139-6 is put back in, section F needs to
be updated beeause the court reference is out of date. Atty. Small agreed.

Chairman Cervoni stated that most people don’t realize that most moving violations are strict liability
offenses. He has no objection to the prima facia language in that section. He thanked Atty. Small for her
work.

Chairman Shortell asked Atty. Small if she has what she needs from Council. Afty. Small said yes and
that she would have a closer-to-final draft for the next meeting. Councilor Fishbein restated his suggested
fees for 139-4 a second offense $100, second offense $200, and in section B, 1 cubic foot or more $300
for any offense. Chairman Shortell asked for objections to those fines and heard none. Councilor Zandri
stated that they approved of the proposed fines.

Chairman Shortell asked for public comment and none was given. Chairman Shortell announced the next
Ordinance Committee meeting is April 1% and declared the meeting adjourned at 10:11 pm.

Respectfully submitted,

Cheryl-Ann Tubby
Recording Secretary

Page 11

Ordinance Committee, March 2, 2021




TOWN ATTORMNEY
GERALD E, FARRELL, 5R,

ASSISTANT TOWN ATTORNEY
GEOFFREY T. EINHORN

G of Wedllingford, Conmeatiout | =spizs e

DEPARTMENT OF LAW
WALLINGFORD TOWN HALL,
45 SOUTH MAIN STREET
WaALLINGFORD, CT 06492

TELEPHONE (208) 284-2140
FAX (208) 284-2112
lawdepti@walingfordet.gov

MEMORANDUM

T0: Christopher K. Shortell, Chairman, Ordinance Committee
Town Council Members

FROM: Janis M. Small, Corporation Counsel
RE: Littering and Dumping Ordinance

DATE: April 16, 2021

Attached is a revised draft for your consideration. You are free to adjust the fines as
you deem appropriate. With regard to § 139-3(H), this language is directly from
§ 22a-250(b)(3).

/;J’
’“//!’(2\

R

. “Sanis M. Smal
.-~ Corporation Counsel

JMS/ijc
Enclosure

cc William W. Dickinson, Jr., Mayor
William J. Wright, Chief of Police




DRAFT
411512021

CHAPTER 139
LITTERING AND DUMPING

Article .
Litter Control

139-1. Findings.

The Town Council finds that in order to create and maintain a healthful and clean
environment, it is necessary to implement a litter control program that will serve
to reduce litter and littering, to collect and remove litter and to promote and
maintain the environmental quality of the Town of Wallingford and the public health
and welfare of its citizens.

§ 139-2. Definitions.
As used in this article, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated

LITTER —Any discarded, used or unconsumed substance or waste material,
whether made of aluminum, glass, plastic, rubber, paper or other natural or
synthetic material, or any combination thereof, including, but not limited to, any
bottle, jar or can or part thereof, any unlighted cigarette, cigar, match or any
flaming or glowing material or any garbage, trash, refuse, debris, rubbish,
newspapers, magazines, glass, metal, plastic or paper containers or other
packaging or construction material which has not been deposited in a
designated litter receptacle.

LITTER RECEPTACLE — A receptacle suitable for the depositing of litter and
designated for such deposits.

PERSON — Any individual, firm, partnership, association, corporation, business
or other legal entity of any kind.

PUBLIC PROPERTY - Includes all streets, sidewalks, public ways and any
public lands open to the public for passive or active recreation, parks, spaces,

grounds, water resources, buildings or any property owned or controlled by the
Town of Wallingford_or State of Connecticut.

§ 139-3. Prohibited actions; responsible parties.

A. No person shall throw, scatter, spill, place or cause to be blown, scattered,
spilled, thrown or placed or otherwise dispose of any litter upon any public
property. This prohibition shall not apply when such property has been
designated for the disposal of garbage or refuse or when such litter is
deposited into a designated litter receptacle in such manner that the litter
will be prevented from being carried away by the elements.

B. No person shall throw or deposit litter on any private property within the
Town, except that the owner or person in control of private property may
maintain authorized private receptacles for collection in such a manner
that the litter will be prevented from being carried or deposited by the
elements upon any street, sidewalk or other public place or upon any



DRAFT
4/15/2021

private property.

C. The owner or person in control of any private property shall control litter on
his property so as to keep it from being blown by the elements upon the
sidewalk, street or other private property. In the event litter is blown from
such property onto adjacent public or private property, the owner or person
in control of such property shall be responsible for clearing the litter from
such adjacent public or private property.

D. Persons who place their household garbage or household waste at curbside
in plastic bags or open containers shall be responsible for collecting such
garbage or waste immediately-upon its being scattered upon public or private
property as the result of the bags-garbage or waste being-tern-open-by-
animals-er-other-causes-erthe-open-sentainers-being-knocked-erblown-over.
released out of the bag or container.

E. Persons hauling trash shall be responsible for collecting any litter immmediately-
upen-ts-being-spilled or scattered upon public or private property while in the
process of emptying any dumpsters or other containers of waste and/or while in
the process of driving-theirvehicles-aleng-Fown-reads-while-picking up and
hauling trash.

F. No litter which consists of household garbage shall be left at curbside
for a period of more than 24 hours.

G. It shall be a rebuttable presumption that litter which identifies the
address of a business or of a housing unit was thrown, scattered, spilled
or placed at the location where it was found by the occupant of such
business address or the resident of such housing unit.

H. When any litter is thrown, blown, scattered or spilled from any vehicle,
the operator thereof shall be deemed prima facie to have committed
such offense.

I. Itis found that products, such as advertising circulars and free sample
newspapers and magazines, not solicited by the owner or resident of the
property to which delivered have a tendency to become litterwhen not
deposited in any receptacle or upon any porch on such property, and,
therefore, no person shall deliver such items to such property by depositing
the same at curbside or upon the lawn, driveway or sidewalk.

J. No person shall sweep into or deposit in any gutter, street or other public
place within the Town the accumulation of litter from any building or lot or
from any public or private sidewalk or driveway. Persons owning or occupying
property shall keep the sidewalk in front of such property free of litter.

K. No person shall deposit litter which is generated from private residential or
commercial uses in a public receptacle.

§ 139-4. Penalties for offenses.

A. Any person who violates§ 139-3 shall be fined $100.00 for the first offense



DRAFT
4/15/2021

and $200.00 for the second and each additional offense. Each day such a
violation is committed or permitted to continue shall constitute a separate
offense.

B.The-fine-for-the-littering-ef-material-as-defined-above, with-a-total- volurme-of-less-than-one-(1)
cubic-foot-on-public-property-or-in-a-publicreceptacle-as-prohibited-in-§-139-3k-—shall-be-
$———Tforeach-oceurrence:

§139-5. Enforcement.

A. The Ordinance shall be enforced by the Police Department and any person appointed and
authorized by the Mayor.

B. For violations of § 139-3, the enforcement official shall serve a written citation in person or
by certified mail, return receipt requested. The citation shall state the violation and the
amount of the fine. The citation shall also state that the person may contest the citation by
filing an appeal with the Town Clerk within ten (10) days of the date of the citation; that if the
person does not appeal, the person will be deemed to have admitted liability; that an
assessment and judgment shall be entered against them; and that such judgment may issue
without further notice.

C. The citation procedure set forth in CGS § 7-152¢ shall apply to citations issued under § 139-
3 of this ordinance.

D. Enforcement under this Ordinance is not exclusive. Enforcement may be through remedies
available through other ordinances, er-statutes_or by way of court action. In addition to
fines, the Town may seek recovery of any costs associated with obtaining compliance with
this Ordinance.

§ 139-6. Appeal; hearing procedure; Citation Hearing officer.

A. Any person cited for a violation of this article may appeal the citation within ten (10) days of
the date of service of citation on a citation appeals form available in the office of the Town
Clerk, 45 South Main Street, Wallingford, Connecticut.

B. The Mayor shall appoint a Citation Hearing Officer(s), other than an employee of the Heatth-
oyee-ofthe-Police Department or other department issuing the
citation, who shall serve until kis-a successor is appointed.

C. The hearing procedure shall be as set forth in § 7-152c¢ of the General Statutes-except-as-
rredified-herein.

ARTICLE II.
Dumping

§139-7. Dumping Prohibited

A. Dumping is defined in General Statutes § 22a-248(12), as amended, and means: To discard
(A) more than one cubic foot in volume of litter at one time or (B) furniture, garbage bags, or



DRAFT
4/15/2021

contents thereof or other similar materials. Material which has been placed at a location
with an intent to leave it indefinitely at such location, or material which has not been
removed from a location within forty-five (45) days is deemed discarded.

Dumping also means to discard automobiles or automobile parts, large appliances, tires,
bulky waste, or other similar material. Dumping includes placing a total volume of more than
one (1) cubic foot of private residential or commercial waste in a public or private trash

receptacle.

B. Pursuant to § 22a-250 et seq., and as defined in § 22a-248, no person shall dump any
material upon any public or private property within the town not owned by such person
except when (1) such property is designated by the State or town for dumping, and (2) such
person is authorized to use such property. It shall not be a defense under this subsection
that the dumping occurred with the permission of the property owner. The town, upon
complaint or on its own initiative, may investigate any violation of this section.

C. The fine for dumping under this section shall be as follows:
(1) The fine for placing a total volume of more than one (1) cubic foot of materials into a

public receptacle shall be $200.00 for the first offense and $300.00 for each offense
thereafter.

(2) The fine for dumping shall be $500.00 for the first offense and $1,000.00 for
the second and subsequent offenses.

D. If the Chief of Police or authorized enforcement official, after investigation, finds that there
has been a violation of-this-section§ 139-7, he or she may send a notice to the owner of the
property where such violation has occurred by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the
address of record for property tax purposes. Such notice may-_shall include:

(1) A reference to the law alleged to have been violated,;
(2) A short and plain statement of the matter asserted or charged,

(3) A demand that such property owner remove any material dumped in violation of this
section to an approved solid waste facility approved by the-tewn_a date certain; and

(4) A statement that such property owner has the right to a hearing to contest the violation
finding and the date, time and place for the hearing. Such hearing shall be fixed for a
date not later than ten (10) days after the notice is mailed. The hearing shall be
completed within fifteen (15) days after such hearing commences, and a decision shall
be rendered within ten (10) days of the completion of such hearing.

(5) The fine for each day the violation exists_beyond the specified date for removal.

E. The Citation Hearing Officer shall hold a hearing upon the alleged violation unless such
property owner fails to appear at the hearing. If such property owner fails to appear at the
hearing or if, after the hearing, the Citation Hearing Officer may-finds that material has been
dumped on such owner's property in violation of-this-seetion§ 139-7, and that such material
has not been removed to an approved solid waste facility, and-request-that-the-enforcement-.
the Officer may order that the property owner remove such material to an approved solid




waste facility within ten-(40)- thirty (30) days. The Citation Hearing Officer shall have-served-
by-State-Marshal-er-send a copy of any order issued by certified mail, return receipt
requested, to such property owner. The person may appeal from an order of the Citation
Hearing Officer under this article in accordance with the provisions of General Statutes § 8-8
as provided in § 22a-250(f)(3).

ARTICLE 11f
Objectionable Products

§ 139-8. Purpose.

The Town Council finds that in order to create and maintain a healthful and
clean environment and to reduce litter and non-
degradable wastes, it is necessary to regulate the sale and use of certain

objectionable products at public functions.

§ 139-9. Definitions.
As used in this article, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated:

OBJECTIONABLE PRODUCTS - Silly string.

SILLY STRING — An aerosol can from which string-shaped foam material may
be sprayed.

§ 139-10. Possession, use or sale prohibited.

No person, firm or corporation shall possess, use, offer for sale or sell the
product commonly known as "Silly String" during the following time periods and at
the following places:

A. Time periods: on days of operation of carnivals, festivals and the Taste of
Wallingford requiring a permit from the appropriate Town of Wallingford agency
and on days of public parades.

B. Places: at or upon public parks, public buildings, public streets, public
sidewalks and public parking lots and/or any other public property.

§ 139-11. Exemption.

This article shall not apply to objectionable products in transit or storage in
interstate commerce.

§ 139-12. Penalties for offenses.

Any person who violates this article shall be subject to a fine of $25.



DRAFT
4/16/2021

CHAPTER 139
LITTERING AND DUMPING

Article L.
Litter Control

139-1. Findings.

The Town Council finds that in order to create and maintain a healthful and clean
environment, it is necessary to implement a litter control program that will serve
fo reduce litter and littering, to collect and remove litter and fo promote and
maintain the environmental quality of the Town of Wallingford and the public health
and welfare of its citizens.

§ 139-2. Definitions.
As used in this article, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated

LITTER —Any discarded, used or unconsumed substance or waste material,
whether made of aluminum, glass, piastic, rubber, paper or other natural or
synthetic material, or any combination thereof, including, but not limited o, any
bottle, jar or can or part thereof, any unlighted cigarette, cigar, match or any
flaming or glowing material or any garbage, trash, refuse, debris, rubbish,
newspapers, magazines, glass, metal, plastic or paper containers or other
packaging or construction material which has not been deposited in a
designated litter receptacle.

LITTER RECEPTACLE — A receptacle suitable for the depositing of litter and
designated for such deposits.

PERSON — Any individual, firm, partnership, association, corporation, business
or other legal entity of any kind.

PUBLIC PROPERTY - Includes all streets, sidewalks, public ways and any
public lands open to the public for passive or active recreation, parks, spaces,
grounds, water resources, buildings or any property owned or controfled by the
Town of Wallingford or State of Connecticut.

§ 139-3. Prohibited actions; responsible parties.

A. No person shall throw, scatter, spill, place or cause to be blown, scattered,
spilled, thrown or placed or otherwise dispose of any litter upon any public
property. This prohibition shall not apply when such property has been
designated for the disposal of garbage or refuse or when such litter is
deposited into a designated litter receptacle in such manner that the litter
will be prevented from being carried away by the elements.

B. No person shall throw or deposit litter on any private property within the
Town, except that the owner or person in control of private property may
maintain authorized private receptacles for collection in such a manner
that the litter will be prevented from being carried or deposited by the

- elements upon any street, sidewalk or other public place or upon any




DRAFT
4/15/2021

private property.

C. The owner or person in control of any private property shall control litter on
his property so as to keep it from being blown by the elements upon the
sidewalk, street or other private property. In the event litter is blown from
such property onto adjacent public or private property, the owner or person
in control of such property shall be responsible for clearing the litter from
such adjacent public or private property.

D. Persons who place their household garbage or household waste at curbside
in plastic bags or open containers shall be responsibie for collecting such
garbage or waste upon its being scattered upon public or private property as
the result of the garbage or waste being released out of the bag or container.

E. Persons hauling trash shall be responsible for collecting any litter spilled or
scattered upon public or private property while in the process of emptying any
dumpsters or other containers of waste and/or while in the process of picking up
and hauling trash,

F. No litter which consists of household garbage shall be left at curbside
for a period of more than 24 hours.

G. It shall be a rebuttable presumption that litter which identifies the
address of a business or of a housing unit was thrown, scattered, spilled
or placed at the location where it was found by the occupant of such
business address or the resident of such housing unit.

H. When any litter is thrown, blown, scattered or spilled from any vehicle,
the operator thereof shall be deemed prima facie to have committed
such offense.

I. Itis found that products, such as advertising circulars and free sample
newspapers and magazines, not solicited by the owner or resident of the
property to which delivered have a tendency to become litterwhen not
deposited in any receptacle or upon any porch on such property, and,
therefore, no person shall deliver such items to such property by depositing
the same at curbside or upon the lawn, driveway or sidewalk.

J. No person shall sweep into or deposit in any gutter, street or other public
place within the Town the accumulation of litter from any building or lot or
from any public or private sidewalk or driveway. Persons owning or occupying
property shall keep the sidewalk in front of such property free of litter.

K. No person shall deposit litter which is generated from private residential or
commercial uses in a public receptacle.

§ 139-4. Penalties for offenses.

A. Any person who vioclates§ 139-3 shall be fined $100.00 for the first offense
and $200.00 for the second and each additional offense. Each day such a
violation is committed or permitted to continue shall constitute a separate
offense.




DRAFT
411512021

§139-5. Enforcement.

A.

The Ordinance shall be enforced by the Police Department and any person appointed and
authorized by the Mayor.

For violations of § 139-3, the enforcement official shall serve a written citation in person or
by certified mail, return receipt requested. The citation shall state the violation and the
amount of the fine. The citation shall aiso state that the person may contest the citation by
filing an appeal with the Town Clerk within ten (10) days of the date of the citation; that if the
person does not appeal, the person will be deemed to have admitted liability; that an
assessment and judgment shall be entered against them; and that such judgment may issue
without further notice.

The citation procedure set forth in CGS § 7-152c¢ shall apply to citations issued under § 139-
3 of this ordinance.

Enforcement under this Ordinance is not exciusive. Enforcement may be through remedies
available through other ordinances, statutes or by way of court action. In addition to fines,
the Town may seek recovery of any costs associated with obtaining compliance with this
Ordinance.

§ 139-6. Appeal; hearing procedure; Citation Hearing officer.

A

Any person cited for a violation of this article may appeal the citation within ten (10) days of
the date of service of citation on a citation appeals form available in the office of the Town
Clerk, 45 South Main Street, Wallingford, Connecticut.

The Mayor shall appoint Citation Hearing Officer(s), other than an employee of the Police
Department or other department issuing the citation, who shall serve until a successor is
appointed.

. The hearing procedure shall be as set forth in § 7-152¢ of the General Statutes.

ARTICLE II.
Dumping

8§139-7. Dumping Prohibited

A.

Dumping is defined in General Statutes § 22a-248(12), as amended, and means: To discard
{A) more than one cubic foot in volume of litter at one time or (B) furniture, garbage bags, or
contents thereof or other similar materials. Material which has been placed at a location
with an intent to leave it indefinitely at such location, or material which has not been
removed from a location within forty-five (45) days is deemed discarded.

Dumping also means to discard automobiles or automobile parts, large appliances, tires,
bulky waste, or other similar material. Dumping includes placing a total volume of more than




DRAFT
4/15/2021

one (1) cubic foot of private residential or commercial waste in a public or private trash
receptacle.

B. Pursuant to § 22a-250 et seq., and as defined in § 22a-248, no person shall dump any
material upon any public or private property within the town not owned by such person
except when (1) such property is designated by the State or town for dumping, and (2) such
person is authorized to use such property. It shall not be a defense under this subsection
that the dumping occurred with the permission of the property owner. The town, upon
complaint or on its own initiative, may investigate any violation of this section.

C. The fine for dumping under this section shall be as follows:

(1) The fine for placing a total volume of more than one (1) cubic foot of materiais into a
public receptacle shall be $200.00 for the first offense and $300.00 for each offense

thereafter,

(2) The fine for dumping shall be $500.00 for the first offense and $1,000.00 for
the second and subsequent offenses,

D. If the Chief of Police or authorized enforcement official, after investigation, finds that there
has been a violation of§ 139-7, he or she may send a notice to the owner of the property
where such violation has occurred by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the address
of record for property tax purposes. Such notice shall include:

(1) A reference to the law alleged to have been violated,;
(2) A short and plain statement of the matter asserted or charged,

(3) A demand that such property owner remove any material dumped in violation of this
section to an approved solid waste facility approved by a date certain; and

(4) A statement that such property owner has the right to a hearing to contest the violation
finding and the date, time and place for the hearing. Such hearing shall be fixed for a
date not later than ten (10) days after the notice is mailed. The hearing shall be
completed within fifteen (15) days after such hearing commences, and a decision shall
be rendered within ten (10) days of the completion of such hearing.

(5) The fine for each day the violation exists beyond the specified date for removal.

E. The Citation Hearing Officer shall hold a hearing upon the alleged violation unless such
property owner fails to appear at the hearing. If such property owner fails to appear at the
hearing or if, after the hearing, the Citation Hearing Officer finds that material has been
dumped on such owner's property in violation of§ 139-7, and that such material has not
been removed to an approved solid waste facility, the Officer may order that the property
owner remove such material to an approved solid waste facility within thirty (30) days. The
Citation Hearing Officer shall send a copy of any order issued by certified mail, return receipt
requested, to such property owner. The person may appeal from an order of the Citation
Hearing Officer under this article in accordance with the provisions of General Statutes § 8-8
as provided in § 22a-250(f)(3).




DRAFT
4/15/2021

ARTICLE Il
Objectionable Products

§ 139-8. Purpose.

The Town Council finds that in order to create and maintain a healthful and
clean environment and o reduce litter and non-

degradable wastes, it is necessary to regulate the sale and use of certain
objectionable products at public functions.

§ 139-9. Definitions.

As used in this article, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated:
OBJECTIONABLE PRODUCTS - Siily string.

SILLY STRING — An aerosol can from which string-shaped foam material may
be sprayed.

§ 139-10. Possession, use or sale prohibited.

No person, firm or corporation shall possess, use, offer for sale or sell the
product commonly known as "Silly String" during the following time periods and at
the following piaces:

A. Time periods: on days of operation of carnivals, festivals and the Taste of
Wallingford requiring a permit from the appropriate Town of Wallingford agency
and on days of public parades.

B. Places: at or upon public parks, public buildings, public streets, public
sidewalks and public parking lots and/or any other public property.

§ 139-11. Exemption.

This article shall not apply to objectionable products in transit or storage in
interstate commerce.

§ 139-12. Penalties for offenses.

Any person who viclates this article shall be subject to a fine of $25.




